FINAL BRIEF

THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In The Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM CHARLESTON COUNTY
Court of Common Pleas

The Honorable Mikell R. Scarborough, Master-In-Equity

Case No. 2009-JG-10-685
Appellant Case No. 2014-001345

Charleston Harbor Marina and Marina,

Respondent,

v.

Paul A. Davis,

Appellant.

FINAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

Paul A. Davis
14639 C.R. Koon Highway
Newberry, S.C. 29108
803-321-7414
Appellant Pro Se

William A. Scott
772 St. Andrews Blvd.
Charleston S.C. 29407
843-556-5656
Attorney for Respondent

FINAL BRIEF

THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In The Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM CHARLESTON COUNTY
Court of Common Pleas

The Honorable Mikell R. Scarborough, Master-In-Equity

Case No. 2009-JG-10-685
Appellant Case No. 2014-001345

Charleston Harbor Marina and Marina,

Respondent,

v.

Paul A. Davis,

Appellant.

FINAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

Paul A. Davis
14639 C.R. Koon Highway
Newberry, S.C. 29108
803-321-7414
Appellant Pro Se

William A. Scott
772 St. Andrews Blvd.
Charleston S.C. 29407
843-556-5656
Attorney for Respondent

April 20, 2015

Jenny Abbott Kitchings
Clerk Of Court
South Carolina Court Of Appeals
P.O. Box 11629
Columbia, S.C. 29211

RE: Charleston Harbor Resort & Marina v. Paul A. Davis
South Carolina Court of Appeals, Case No. 2014-001345

Dear Ms. Kitchings:

Enclosed please find an original and fifteen (15) copies of the Final Brief of the Appellant, and the Certificate of Service in the above-referenced matter.

By copy of this letter, the Final Brief of the Appellant and Certificate of Service are being served upon the Respondent's Attorney, William A. Scott.

Sincerely,

Paul A. Davis
14639 C. R. Koon Highway
Newberry, S.C. 29108
Davis 979@gmail.com
Pro SE

cc: William A. Scott

THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

In The Court Of Appeals

APPEAL FROM CHARLESTON COUNTY

Court Of Common Pleas

The Honorable Mikell R. Scarborough, Master In Equity

Case No. 2009-JG-10-685

Appellant Case No. 2014-001345

Charleston Harbor Resort & Marina

Respondent

v.

Paul A. Davis

Appellant

FINAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

In The Court Of Appeals

APPEAL FROM CHARLESTON COUNTY

Court Of Common Pleas

The Honorable Mikell R. Scarborough, Master In Equity

Case No. 2009-JG-10-685

Appellate Case No. 2014-001345

Charleston Harbor Resort and Marina ,

Respondent

v.

Paul A. Davis,

Appellant

DESIGNATION OF MATTER TO BE
INCLUDED IN THE RECORD ON APPEAL

Appellant proposes the following be included in the Record on Appeal:

1. Order of The Honorable Mikell R. Scarborough dated April 10, 2014 filed April 18, 2014;
2. Transcript of Proceedings pp . 69-72; p. 86 dated August 19, 2013;
3. Defendant's Exhibit A Return of Private Process Server Daniel F. Delcollo dated February 18, 2009; p.17
4. Defendant's Exhibit B Affidavit of Joyce Lockhart dated June 10, 2013; p.18
5. Defendant's Exhibit C Charleston Harbor Resort Marina statements and newsletters dated May 1, 2014, June 1, 2014, and July 1, 2014;
6. Notice Of Motion For Relief From Judgment, and Memorandum In Support dated June14, 2013; p.12

PAUL A. DAVIS
14639 C.R. KOON HIGHWAY
NEWBERRY, S.C. 29108
803-321-7414
davis979@gmail.com

September 2, 2014

Jenny Abbott Kitchings/Clerk
The South Carolina Court Of Appeals
P.O. Box 11629
Columbia, S.C. 29211

RE: Appeal
Charleston Harbor Resort and Marina-Plaintiff
v.
Paul A. Davis-Defendant
Case No. 2009-JG-10-685 Appellate Case No. 2014-001345

To Whom it May Concern:

I am appealing the Ruling by The Honorable Mikell R. Scarborough in the hearing held on August 19, 2013 at 100 Broad Street Charleston, S.C. in the Court of Common Pleas for the 9th Judicial Circuit, pertaining to a Judgment against myself obtained by Charleston Harbor Resort & Marina who is represented by William A. Scott, Esq. Rogers, Townsend and Thomas, PC, 775 St. Andrews Blvd. , Charleston, S.C. 29407. Service was on Joyce Lockhart, Corporate Systems, Inc. 505 Brookfield Dr. , Dover, Delaware 19901, a person in a city and state where I have never visited and have never met, nor given any authority to accept service on my behalf. Ms. Lockhart did not forward to me any documents that was served on her and I had absolutely no knowledge regarding a law suit, hearings or judgment. Once I was made aware of the existing judgment , I promptly asked John Hughes Cooper to challenge the judgment, which he did. 14639 C.R. Koon Highway Newberry, S.C. 29108 has been an active mailing address from 2000 to present. Plaintiff continues to mail statements and newsletters to this address (" Exhibit C"). Plaintiff's

Attorney, Mr. Scott, had knowledge and access to acquire this active address from his client, Charleston Harbor Resort and Marina, and did not. Instead, he sent service to an out of state location that had no authority to accept service on my behalf. I believe this service to be extremely improper, and an intentional act of deception by Mr. Scott to deprive me of my legal right of due process, and I respectfully request Judge Scarborough's ruling be reversed and Vacant Judgment as Void.

This Appeal for Relief from Judgment is based upon the Return of Private Process Server Daniel F. Delcollo ("Exhibit A"), the Affidavit of Joyce Lockhart ("Exhibit B"), statements and newsletters from Charleston Harbor Resort and Marina ("Exhibit C"), and the rules, statutes, common law, and Constitutions of South Carolina and of the United States. The Return of Private Process Server, Daniel F. Delcollo ("Exhibit A"), indicates that on February 4, 2009, at 10:45 a.m., he served "Corporate Systems, Inc. - Joyce Lockhart- Registered Agent" "by personally delivering copies to the authorized agent being served." The Return further gives a description of Ms. Lockhart as the person served. The affidavit of Joyce Lockhart ("Exhibit B") states under oath that neither she nor Corporate Systems, Inc. has never been an authorized agent for me. Although Corporate Systems, Inc. was and is the registered agent for a corporation owned by me, neither Joyce Lockhart nor Corporate Systems, Inc. was authorized to accept service for me, did not forward any documents to me, and did not notify me in any way. I do not believe this is proper Service. Rule 4 (d) (1) of the South Carolina Rules of Civil Procedure provides in pertinent part that "Service shall be made upon an individual by delivering a copy of the summons and complaint to him personally or by leaving copies thereof at his dwelling house or usual place of abode with some person of suitable age and discretion then residing therein, or by delivering a copy to an agent authorized by appointment or by law to receive service of process" Rule 4 (d)(1), South Carolina Rules of Civil Procedure. Plaintiff failed to serve me personally, failed

to serve someone of suitable age and discretion at my dwelling, and failed to serve anyone authorized by appointment or law. Plaintiff failed to comply with Rule 4(d)(1), failed to serve me with process, failed to obtain personal jurisdiction over me, failed to give me notice and opportunity to defend, and failed to observe my rights to due process. "A Judgment is void if a court acts without personal jurisdiction." BB&T v. Taylor, 369 S.C. 548, 551, 633, S.E.2d 501, 503 (2006); Thomas and Howard Co. v. T.W. Graham & Co., 318 S.C. 286, 291, 457 S.E. 2d 340, 343, (1995); Stearns Bank Nat. Ass'n. V. Glenwood Falls, LP 373 S.C. 331, 644 S.E. 2d 793 (S.C. App. 2007) (reh. den., cert. den.) The instant judgment was entered by a court without personal jurisdiction over me and is therefore void. "When a defendant is not properly served, 'the court has no jurisdiction of the defendant, and all proceedings based on the pretended service are void," Momani v. Van Surdam, 296 S.C. 409, 373 S.E. 2d 691 (S.C., App. 1988), citing Wyman V. Hoover, 10 S.C. 135, 136 (1878). Rule 60 (b) (4) of the South Carolina Rules of Civil Procedure provides in pertinent part: "On motion and upon such terms as are just, the court may relieve a party or his legal representative from a final judgment, order, or proceedings for the following reasons: (4) the judgment is void:" Rule 60 (b) (4), South Carolina of Civil Procedure. "A void judgment is one that, from its inception, is a complete nullity and is without legal effect and must be distinguished from which is merely 'voidable'." Thomas & Howard Co. v. T.W. Graham & Co., 318 S.C. 286, 291, 457 S.E. 2d 340, 343 (1995) (citing, 46 AmJur2d Judgment 31 (1994.)) The instant judgment is void and should be vacated forthwith.

In summary: the only evidence in this case is the Return of Private Process Server, Daniel F. Delcollo, the Affidavit of Joyce Lockhart and statements and newsletters from Charleston Harbor Resort and Marina. I was not served, had no knowledge of any lawsuit or Judgment, wherefore, I the Defendant prays for an Order to Vacate Judgment as Void.

Thank you in advance for your gracious consideration in this matter.