3

THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In the Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM CHARLESTON COUNTY
Court of Common Pleas

IN CASE NO. 2009-CP-1000685, THE HONORABLE MIKELL R. SCARBOROUGH

Case No. 2014-001345

RECEIVED

APR 23 2015

SC Court of Appeals

CHARLESTON HARBOR RESORT & MARINA.....Respondent,

v.

PAUL DAVIS.....Appellant.

FINAL BRIEF OF RESPONDENT

PEDERSEN & SCOTT, P.C.

William A. Scott, Esq.
775 St. Andrews Boulevard
Charleston, SC 29407
Tel: (843) 556-5656
Fax: (843) 556-5635

Attorney for Respondent

April 22, 2015

STATEMENT OF ISSUES ON APPEAL

1. SHOULD THE APPEAL BE DISMISSED BECAUSE THE APPELLANT FAILED TO FILE AN APPEAL IN THE SMALL CLAIMS COURT?
2. IS THIS APPEAL UNTIMELY AS A RESULT OF THE APPELLANT'S FAILURE TO APPEAL THE ORDER ISSUED BY JUDGE DENNIS ON AUGUST 5, 2013?
3. WAS DAVIS PROPERLY SERVED PURSUANT TO RULE 4(d)?
4. DID THE COURT ABUSE ITS DISCRETION IN DENYING THE APPELLANT'S MOTION TO VACATE THE JUDGMENT PURSUANT TO RULE 60(b)(4)?

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This case involved collection of dockage fees for a 45' sail boat pursuant to a License Agreement for Dockage (R. pp. 20-24, hereinafter "Agreement")¹ between Charleston Harbor Resort & Marina (hereinafter "the Marina") and Paul Davis (hereinafter "Davis"). Davis kept his sailing vessel, Grand Cru, at the Marina from April 2007 to May 2008. In January 2009, the Marina filed a complaint in the Small Claims Court for unpaid dockage. Davis failed to file an answer or other responsive pleading and the Small Claim Court entered Judgment against Davis on April 3, 2009. (R. p. 14) On May 15, 2013, the Honorable Roger Young, Circuit Court Judge, issued an Order for Supplemental Proceedings in the case. (R. pp. 1-3) Davis, through his attorney, John Hughes Cooper, Esquire, filed a Notice of Motion, Motion for Relief from Judgment, and a Memorandum in Support on June 14, 2013. By Order dated August 5, 2013, the Honorable R. Markley Dennis, Jr. denied the Defendant's Motion for Relief without Prejudice. (R. p. 4) Davis did not file a Motion for Reconsideration or appeal the Order. A hearing was

¹ The Appellant failed to produce a Record on Appeal; therefore, the Respondent prepared and filed Respondent's Record on Appeal. Reference to the Record on Appeal in Respondent's Brief is to Respondent's Record on Appeal and referred to as R-page number.

held in front of the Honorable Michael R. Scarborough on August 19, 2013, and the motion was again denied. A written Order was issued by Judge Scarborough on April 10, 2014, denying Davis' motion. (R. pp. 5-13) The Court found that Davis was properly served, that Davis failed to file his Motion for Relief from Judgment within a reasonable time, Davis failed to file a motion with the Small Claims Court, and Davis failed to appeal the Order issued by Judge Dennis on August 5, 2013. This appeal followed.

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

This case involves the collection of a debt of dockage for a 45' sailboat named Grand Cru. Davis does not dispute that he owes the money.

On April 19, 2007, Davis entered into the Agreement for dockage for the sailing vessel, Grand Cru, with the Marina. (R. p. 20, Agreement). On the first line of the Agreement Davis listed himself as "Owner." *Id.* On the second line of the Agreement Davis listed his address as "101 North Fairfield Drive, Dover, DE 19901-5720. *Id.*

The Vessel had been documented with the USCG, documentation No. 1056595; however, the documentation expired on June 30, 2006. (R. p. 15, National Vessel Documentation Center Certification of Documentation for Vessel Grand Cru). The documentation identifies the owner as Chesapeake Venture Corp., 101 North Fairfield Drive, Dover, DE 19901. (*Id.*). On March 1, 2008, the charter for Chesapeake Venture Corp. was revoked for non-payment of taxes and/or failure to file a complete annual report. (R, p. 61, State of Delaware Certificate for Renewal and Revival of Charter dated April 17, 2013).

On January 16, 2009, the Marina filed a Complaint against Davis in the Small Claims Court for unpaid dockage. (R. pp. 26-27) On January 28, 2009, the Complaint was sent via U.S.

Mail to Paul Davis at 101 North Fairfield Drive, Dover, DE 19901. (R. p. 25, Letter to Paul Davis dated January 28, 2009). The letter was not returned by the U.S. Mail. On February 4, 2009, a process server served the Complaint on Joyce Lockhart as registered agent for Paul Davis at 505 Brookfield Drive, Dover, Delaware.² (R. p. 28, Return of Private Process Servicer Daniel F. Delcollo dated February 18, 2009). Ms. Lockhart is over the age of 18, and was and is employed by Corporate Systems, Inc. (R. pp. 62-63, Affidavit of Joyce Lockhart dated June 10, 2013). Lockhart knew Davis and that he was the owner of Chesapeake Venture Corp. *Id.* Corporate Systems was the registered agent for Chesapeake Venture Corp. *Id.* Davis did not file an answer or otherwise appear in the underlying action.

On April 3, 2009, judgment was entered against Davis by the Small Claims Court in the amount of \$5,286.56. (R. p. 14, Transcript of Judgment dated April 3, 2009). On April 28, 2009, the Transcript of Judgment was filed in Circuit Court.

In another case against Davis for failure to pay dockage, *Sunset Cay v. Davis*, Case 2012-CV-1010600380 (R. pp. 30-31), the attorneys for Sunset Cay Marina, who also represents the Plaintiff in this action, sent a settlement proposal to Wendy Keefer, Esq., the attorney for Davis at that time, that states, “There is an existing Judgment against Mr. Davis in favor of Charleston Harbor Resort and Marina for \$5,286.56” (R. pp. 33-34, Letter to Wendy J. Keefer, Esquire, dated June 8, 2012). Ms. Keefer forwarded the letter to Davis on June 11, 2012. (R. p. 35, Email from Wendy Keefer to Lynn Davis dated June 11, 2012).

² The address for Corporate Systems, Inc. changed from 101 North Fairfield Drive, Delaware, to 505 Brookfield Drive, Dover Delaware.

Davis continued to claim to be the owner of the vessel in the litigation between Sunset Cay Marina and Davis. Davis alleged in his Answer that “an entity owned solely by Davis is the registered owner of the vessel but that entity no longer exists or operates and that its property is now the property of Davis.” (R. p. 44; see also, R. p. 36, Defendants’ Answer and Counterclaim dated June 12, 2012).

On April 17, 2013, Davis renewed and revived the charter for Chesapeake Venture Corp., and listed Corporate Systems, Inc. as the registered agent. (R. p. 61, State of Delaware Certificate of Renewal and Revival of Charter dated April 17, 2013). Davis also renewed the documentation for the vessel with the United States Coast Guard and identified Chesapeake Venture Corp. as the owner.

June 18, 2013, Davis filed a complaint in federal court, Civil Action No. 2:13-cv-01657, against Gary Schwab, d/b/a Sunset Cay Marina, claiming the Vessel was owned by Chesapeake Venture Corp. and that he was not the owner of the Vessel, but that he had chartered the vessel. (R. pp. 47-60, *Chesapeake Venture Corp., et al. v. Sunset Cay Marine, et al.*, Civ. No. 2:13-cv-01657-DCN (D.S.C. filed June 18, 2013)).

ARGUMENT

STANDARD OF REVIEW

Whether to grant or deny a motion under Rule 60(b) lies within the sound discretion of the trial court, *Coleman v. Dunlap*, 306 S.C. 491, 494, 413 S.E.2d 15, 17 (1992); therefore, the standard of review is limited to determining whether there was an abuse of discretion. *Raby Const., L.L.P. v. Orr*, 358 S.C. 10, 18, 594 S.E.2d 478, 482 (2004). An abuse of discretion arises when the order was controlled by an error of law or when the order is based on factual

conclusions that are without evidentiary support. *Tri-County Ice & Fuel Co. v. Palmetto Ice Co.*, 303 S.C. 237, 242, 399 S.E.2d 779, 782 (1990).

An individual may be served “by delivering a copy of the summons and complaint to him personally or by leaving copies at his dwelling, house, or usual place of abode with some person of suitable age and discretion then residing therein, or by delivering a copy to an agent authorized by appointment or by law to receive service of process.” Rule 4 (d)(1), South Carolina Rules of Civil Procedure (SCRCP).

The principal objective of service of process is to give notice to the defendant of the proceedings against him. Rule 4 serves at least two purposes. First, it confers personal jurisdiction on the court; and, second, it assures the defendant of reasonable notice of the action. Exact compliance with the Rule is not required to effect service of process. The Court must inquire whether the plaintiff had sufficiently complied with the Rules such that the Court has personal jurisdiction of the defendant and the defendant has notice of the proceedings. *Mull v. Ridgeland Realty, LLC*, 387 S.C. 479, 485, 693 SE 2d 27, 30, (Ct. App. 2010). “There is a presumption of proper service when the civil rules on service are followed.” *Fassett v. Evans*, 364 S.C. 42, 47, 610 S.E.2d 841, 843 (Ct. App. 2005). “An officer’s return of process creates the legal presumption of proper service that cannot be ‘impeached by the mere denial of service by the defendant.’ *Richardson Constr. Co. v. Meek Eng'g and Constr.*, 274 S.C. 307, 311, 262 S.E.2d 913, 916 (1980).” *Id.*

I. THE APPEAL SHOULD BE DISMISSED BECAUSE DAVIS FAILED TO FILE AN APPEAL IN THE SMALL CLAIMS COURT.

The lower court correctly ruled that in supplemental proceedings, the court accepts a judgment as valid, and that Davis failed to file a motion to set aside the judgment in the correct court. (R. p. 12, Order dated April 10, 2014, p. 8).

Davis did not file an appeal in the proper court. In this case, the judgment Davis appeals from was entered by the Small Claims Court. Rule 12, South Carolina Rules of Magistrates Court (SCRMC), provides for an appeal from a final judgment when a judgment is void. Rule 12(b)(4), SCRMC. The motion must be filed with a reasonable time. *Id.* In this case, since the judgment Davis challenges was issued by the Small Claims Court, Davis had to file a motion for relief from the judgment in the Small Claims Court, as opposed to the circuit court. The Master-in-Equity did not have jurisdiction to vacate the order because it assumed the judgment entered by the Small Claims Court was valid.

Since Davis failed to challenge the judgment in the proper court, the lower court properly determined that the judgment was valid. Therefore, this appeal should be denied.

II. THE APPEAL MUST BE DISMISSED BECAUSE DAVIS FAILED TO APPEAL THE ORDER ISSUED BY JUDGE DENNIS ON AUGUST 5, 2013 DENYING THE MOTION.

The lower court correctly ruled that Davis failed to appeal the Order issued by Judge Dennis on August 5, 2013; therefore, the Davis' argument is moot. (R. p. 13, Order dated April 10, 2014, p. 9).

Notice of an appeal must be filed within thirty (30) days of a final order. Rule 203, South Carolina Appellate Court Rules (SCACR). In this case, Judge Dennis issued a written Order on August 5, 2013 denying Davis' motion for relief from judgment. (R. p. 4, Judgment denying

Defendant's Motion for Relief Without Prejudice dated August 5, 2013). Davis did not appeal that order. Instead, Davis scheduled a hearing with the Master in Equity, argued the motion, and then filed an appeal. The failure to appeal the Order issued by Judge Dennis precludes the appeal of the Order issued by Judge Scarborough, and this appeal should be denied.

III. DAVIS WAS PROPERLY SERVED.

Davis was properly served at the address he gave as his address as owner of the vessel on the Agreement. The first line of the Agreement identifies Davis as the "Owner's Name." (R. p. 20, Agreement). The second list "101 N. Fairfield Drive, Dover, Delaware 19901-5720" as the "Address" for the owner. *Id.* Davis was served at that address by hand delivering a copy of the Summons and Complaint to Joyce Lockhart. (R. p. 26, Return of Private Process Server Daniel F. Delcollo dated February 18, 2009).

Service was proper for two reasons. First, service was proper on Ms. Lockhart because she resides at the address listed by Davis on the Agreement and she is over the age of 18. (R. p. 62, Affidavit of Joyce Lockhart dated June 10, 2013). Second, the lower court properly concluded that Lockhart was the agent for Davis. The lower court concluded that Davis, by identifying himself as the owner and giving the address of Corporate Systems, Inc. to the Marina, appointed Corporate Systems, Inc. as his agent for service of process. The Marina perfected service on Davis by serving his agent. Rule 4(d)(1), SCRCF.

What is noticeably missing from the record is anything that suggests Davis did not receive notice of the Complaint. Significantly, Ms. Lockhart did not state in her affidavit that she did not provide a copy of the Summons and Complaint to Paul Davis, whom she knew, even as the owner of Chesapeake Venture Corp. It is inconceivable that Lockhart, who was in the

business of accepting service and knew Davis, did not provide him with a copy of the Summons and Complaint when she was served. Likewise, the record is void of any statement from Davis that he did not receive a copy of the Summons and Complaint. One would think that if Davis really did not receive the Summons and Complaint, he would have provided an affidavit so stating.

Based on the record, there is ample evidence that Davis was properly serviced in accordance with Rule 4(d)(1), SCRCPP. Therefore, lacking any evidence of an abuse of discretion, the lower court's ruling should be sustained.

IV. DAVIS FAILED TO APPLY FOR RELIEF FROM THE JUDGMENT WITHIN A REASONABLE TIME.

Even if service was not proper, the lower court properly ruled that Davis failed to challenge the judgment within a reasonable time. Rule 60(b), SCRCPP, requires that a challenge to a judgment must be made within a reasonable time. Rule 60(b), SCRCPP. In *McDaniel v. United States Fidelity and Guarantee Company*, 324 SC 639, 478 SE 2d 868 (Ct. App. 1997), the Court of Appeals held that the reasonable time requirements apply to Rule 60 (b)(4) motions that attack a judgment as void.

Davis received notice of the judgment no later than June 11, 2012, when his attorney, Wendy Keefer, was made aware of the judgment. (R. pp. 33-34, Letter to Wendy Keefer, Esquire, dated June 8, 2012). Ms. Keefer forwarded the letter advising of the judgment to Davis. (R. p. 35, Email from Wendy Keefer to Lynn Davis dated June 11, 2012). However, Davis took no action to contest the judgment for over a year. Davis waited until June 14, 2013, after Supplemental Proceedings were initiated in this case, before contesting the judgment. Once Davis learned of the judgment in June of 2012, he had an affirmative obligation to contest it